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It is the applicant’s responsibility to review the eligibility requirements in Section II of GFO-15-606 to determine whether or not their particular proposed project is eligible to apply.  The Energy Commission cannot at this time give answers as to whether or not a particular project is eligible, because all project details are not known.

ADMINISTRATION/PROCESS 

1. What is the absolute completion date for the proposed grant if awarded?

All work should be scheduled for completion by March 31, 2021, and must include six months of data collection and reporting.  Please see the requirements for the Schedule of Products and Due Dates on page 27 of the solicitation.

2. Are there any small business, Disabled Veteran Business Enterprise (DVBE), women-owned business enterprise, or minority-owned business enterprise participation eligibility requirements under this solicitation? 

No.  

3. Please clarify the non-discrimination section of the Terms and Conditions.  The California code does not seem to apply to non-discrimination.  

There are two pertinent code sections that involve non-discrimination which apply to this GFO. The citations are contained in Sections 2.e and 23.b of the Terms and Conditions (Attachment 9) and the code sections listed are accurate. 

4. Can the Energy Commission confirm whether a hard copy is required or optional for the pre-application abstract submittal?  The Energy Commission indicates that “spiral or comb binding is preferred and tabs are encouraged.  Binders are discouraged.  Original of application should be bound only with a binder clip.”  However, it also notes that the preferred method for delivery is the online Grant Solicitation System.

The preferred method for delivery (for both the pre-application abstract and the full application) is electronically through the online Grant Solicitation System. If submitting through the Grant Solicitation System, no hard copies are required to be submitted (and hence no binding requirements).

If an applicant chooses to submit their pre-application abstract or full application by hard copy, only an original copy must be submitted. Addendum 2 removes the binding requirements for hard copy applications.

5. Is there an alternative to electronic submittal in Microsoft XP?  Is a newer version of Microsoft Word acceptable for submission?

Yes.  Please see Addendum 2.

6. The Online Submission Training video indicates that the application “submit” bottom would disappear at 3:01 p.m. on the application due date.  Is this true?

No. Pre-application abstracts are due on August 24, 2016 by 5:00 p.m., and full applications are due on November 14, 2016 by 5:00 p.m.  The Energy Commission will no longer accept applications after 5:00 p.m. on the respective due dates, so the “submit” button will disappear at 5:01 p.m.

FUNDING

7. Is the maximum award based on what is produced by the end of the project period?

No, the maximum award is determined by the project’s volumetric increase in annual production capacity.  The project may or may not be producing at full capacity by the end of the project; however, the degree to which the date of full production capacity and operation at capacity can be expedited will be evaluated in the Project Readiness and Implementation scoring criteria during full application scoring.

8. If the applicant submits applications in both the community-scale and commercial-scale categories, and the applicant receives an award for both, are the projects renegotiated regarding available funding?  

Yes, if the described situation occurs, the applicant will need to choose the project that will be completed. 

There is no restriction in GFO-15-606 against applicants submitting applications in both the community-scale and commercial-scale categories.  However, applicants should note  Section II.A of GFO-15-606 which states that “applicants may submit multiple applications; however, each application must be for a distinct, separate project (i.e., no overlap with respect to the tasks described in the Scope of Work, Attachment 2), must be submitted separately and must adhere to all requirements contained in the solicitation.” Therefore, if an applicant submits applications in both the community-scale and commercial-scale categories the applications must have no overlap with respect to the Scope of Work tasks, otherwise both applications will be disqualified in accordance with the technical screening criteria listed on page 35 of the GFO.  Applications that only modify the volumetric biofuel production capacity or make other minor modifications to a proposed project do not constitute a separate and distinct project proposal and are subject to disqualification in accordance with the technical screening criteria of the solicitation.

9. What if an applicant submits applications for two unique projects but can only commit match funding to one of those projects (depending on which one scores higher)? 

While not recommended, there is no restriction preventing an applicant from committing the same source of match share funds for multiple proposed projects. However, applicants should note that both the pre-application abstracts and full proposal scoring criteria evaluate the degree to which match funds are available and verifiable. If multiple applications utilize the same sources of match funding, all applications affected may be scored lower in accordance with the evaluation criteria. This could cause one or more applications to not meet the minimum passing score and not be eligible for funding. 

Additionally, if an Applicant submits multiple applications using the same source of match share funds, this should be clearly noted in all applications affected.

10. Is the $0.15/DGE performance multiplier incremental or does it apply to all production once this threshold is reached? 

All of the performance multipliers apply to the total proposed increase in volume of production proposed. If a new 20 million gallon per year (mgpy) biofuel production facility is proposed, the performance multiplier ($0.15/DGE) is applied to the entire 20 mgpy.  If a project proposes to expand production capacity at an existing facility, the performance multiplier is only applied to the additional capacity added as a result of the proposed project.

ELIGIBILITY

11. Does the production of bio-jet fuel qualify as an eligible project?

No.  Projects must produce a transportation fuel used to mitigate the environmental effects of on-road motor vehicle air emissions.  Therefore, fuels such as aviation, marine, and other off-road fuels are ineligible. 

12. Does the production of bio-propane qualify as an eligible project? Would it fall in the “diesel substitute” category, or can it be used as a blendstock for DME?

No. The ARFVTP Investment Plans covering this funding do not include propane as a recognized alternative fuel.  Funding solicitations are required to be consistent with these publicly-vetted and Energy Commission adopted investment plans.

13. Can the solicitation provide the flexibility for renewable hydrogen production?

No. The ARFVTP Investment Plans covering this funding do not include renewable hydrogen production as part of the Biofuel Production and Supply funding category. Funding solicitations are required to be consistent with these publicly-vetted and Energy Commission adopted investment plans.

14. Is the production capacity the physical capability of the facility on Day 1?

Yes. The production capacity is the physical production capability of the facility once it is constructed. While most facilities require a ramp up process prior to full production, the applicant should specify the expected timeframe to achieve full production as part of the application.

15. Can you elaborate on the grant agreement that needs to be completed within 60 days after approval of the award? Does this mean that construction of the new plant must be executed within 60 days?

An applicant to this solicitation that receives an award to develop an advanced biofuel production facility shall commit to executing its grant agreement with the Energy Commission within 60 days after approval of the award at the Energy Commission business meeting.

Construction does not need to begin within 60 days of award approval; however, the degree to which the date of full production capacity and operation at capacity can be expedited will be evaluated under the Project Readiness and Implementation scoring criteria during full application scoring.  

16. Will you consider projects that are built outside of California but ship all of the fuel to California?

No.  All eligible biofuel production facilities must be located in California.  Project construction and operations work must also occur in California.  See Section II.B, Eligible Projects of the solicitation.

17. If a single facility does not meet the 100,000 DGE production requirement, can the applicant apply for two community-scale facilities as one project if the fuel production from the total project adds up to the volume requirement?

No.

18. Our proposed project will use a patented algal bioreactor to convert flue gas into biodiesel?  Is this eligible?

Based on our understanding of your proposed project, a fossil-derived feedstock would not qualify as biomass under this solicitation.  Eligible biomass feedstocks do not include non-biogenic, non-organic, or contaminated sources, including flue gas under this solicitation.  Recycled waste gases would only be eligible if captured from processing of entirely organic materials.  The purpose of this solicitation is to support biofuel production from biomass defined as “organic material not derived from fossil fuels.”  Eligible feedstocks will include those listed in Section II.B.5 in the solicitation.

This is a universally accepted, international definition of biomass based on the concept that combustion of organically-derived materials do not add new GHGs to the biosphere, they only recycle it.  Non-organic feedstocks do introduce new hydrocarbons into the biosphere, increasing the total carbon load on biospheric systems, and thus fuels from these sources are not “carbon neutral.”    

19. Does the production of biocrude that is refined into renewable jet fuel or renewable gasoline qualify as an eligible project?

Biocrude oil is an eligible biomass feedstock and can be included as part of a proposed project as long as the project proposes to produce an eligible biofuel.  An eligible biofuel must be the end product of all proposed projects.

Under this solicitation renewable gasoline is an eligible biofuel; renewable jet fuel is not an eligible biofuel.  Eligible biofuels must be designated and produced for on-road vehicle use.  Biofuels production for non-road uses, such as aviation, are not eligible. 

20. The solicitation mentions that expansions or modifications to existing biofuel production facilities are eligible for grant funding. Do you consider the 100,000 DGE minimum to be the difference before and after the planned expansion or modification or will only the final amount of fuel produced be considered? For example, if you have a digester producing 80,000 DGE and you increase production by 25% to 100,000 DGE is that eligible? 

No.  All projects must result in an increase in production capacity of at least 100,000 diesel gallon equivalents (DGE) per year.  Therefore, a digester currently producing 80,000 DGE must increase production to 180,000 DGE or more to be eligible to apply.

21. If your existing facility once produced 80,000 DGE, but is no longer operating today, and you propose modifications to get it back into operation and producing 100,000 DGE, is that eligible? 

No. This solicitation seeks proposals for new biofuel production facilities or expansion of existing facilities. Projects seeking to modify existing facilities must result in an increase in production capacity of at least 100,000 DGE per year to be eligible to apply. Re-starting an idle facility without adding the minimum new increment of production of at least 100,000 gallons per year DGE is not eligible for funding.

22. If a facility produces 100,000 DGE today, but would meet the end of its service life without any modification before the project end date, would that modification be eligible? 

No. This solicitation seeks proposals for new biofuel production facilities or expansion of existing facilities. Projects seeking to modify existing facilities must result in an increase in production capacity of at least 100,000 DGE per year to be eligible to apply.  

23. On page 8 under Eligible Projects, the solicitation states “Biomethane. Renewable natural gas produced from organic material.” Does this organic material include syngas from gasification and conversion by Fischer-Tropsch method to renewable diesel, or would this be a diesel substitute project?  

If the end product of the project is renewable diesel fuel, this project would be considered a diesel substitute project.

The feedstock used for the syngas determines project feedstock eligibility.  If the syngas from gasification is produced from an organic biomass source, it would be considered an eligible feedstock. 

24. Most of the eligible bio-energy feedstocks listed on page 8 of the solicitation seem to overlap with CalRecycle’s intended feedstocks for composting (i.e., not bio-energy).  Does this seeming conflict present any issues?  Could you provide some detail on how these competing feedstocks would be coordinated with CalRecycle?

This solicitation complements the goals of CalRecycle which is working to significantly reduce organics from landfills. The conversion of organic wastes to fuel provides another alternative to achieve this goal. The applicant should be able to demonstrate how the proposed project, and its intended feedstock, is economically viable and how it competes in the California marketplace.

The Energy Commission works closely with CalRecycle to coordinate funding and regulatory efforts in order to meet the State of California’s climate change and waste diversion goals.

25. Under Section II.H, Agreement and Subcontract Execution, it appears there is a 60 day requirement for executing a grant agreement with the Energy Commission plus a 90 day requirement for executing subcontracts, is there any leeway in these timelines?  Some public agencies may have CEQA and procurement processes that will make this schedule difficult.

All projects must have obtained CEQA compliance before a recommended award is formally approved at an Energy Commission Business Meeting. Once an award is approved at the Energy Commission Business Meeting, the Recipient has 60 days to execute (i.e., sign) the grant agreement. Because CEQA compliance must be obtained prior to business meeting approval, CEQA should not delay agreement execution.

Upon execution of the grant agreement, the Recipient then has 90 days to execute all subcontracts. The solicitation states that the Energy Commission reserves the right to cancel awards that do not meet these deadlines.

26. Is there a minimum life of the facility and production capability period required for this solicitation?  Do supporting materials on the life of the facility and production capabilities need to be provided?

There is not a minimum life of a facility and production capability period required for the solicitation.  The solicitation asks questions regarding the project’s business plan, project benefits, total greenhouse gas reductions annually, and total petroleum displacement annually, which could be affected by the life of the project. The Technology Plan criterion evaluates, in part, the proposed project’s ability to increase the in-state production of low carbon biofuels. Additionally, the Sustainability criterion evaluates, in part, how the proposed project reduces total greenhouse gas emissions and displaces petroleum. Projects with greater long-term production potential will score higher. Applicants are encouraged to provide relevant materials to support and demonstrate the long-term biofuel production capability of the proposed facility.

For a community-scale facility intended to demonstrate a much larger commercial deployment of the proposed technology, the Technology and Marketing Plans should discuss how the demonstration facility will be scaled or modified to reach commercial capacity. 

27. Is there a target carbon intensity maximum that allows a fuel to qualify as a low-carbon biofuel?  

Please see the Addendum 2 changes which appear in Section II.B.3 of the GFO.  All proposed projects must result in a biofuel with calculated carbon intensity below the California Air Resources Board (ARB) Low Carbon Fuel Standard (LCFS) reference baselines for corn ethanol for gasoline substitutes (75.97 gCO2e/MJ), or soy biodiesel for diesel substitutes (56.95 gCO2e/MJ), as applicable.  For the purposes of this solicitation, biomethane projects are stipulated as meeting this eligibility requirement.

Additionally, several scoring metrics are based on the estimated carbon intensity of the proposed fuel. For example, the cost effectiveness of the expected GHG reductions is evaluated as part of the Project Budget and Cost Effectiveness scoring criterion.  This scoring criterion is based on the dollar of Energy Commission funding per metric ton of annual GHG reductions.  With everything else being equal, projects resulting in greater GHG reductions per dollar of Energy Commission funding will score higher under this criterion.  This criterion is also tied for the highest weighted scoring criterion at 50 points. Additionally, the Sustainability scoring criterion evaluates the degree to which the proposed project reduces biofuel carbon intensity relative to the relevant fossil fuel baseline.

28. How will community-scale be categorized?  How is community-scale defined in comparison to commercial-scale?  For example, is there a ranking preference or criteria for lowering the carbon intensity of an entire community?

For purposes of this solicitation, community-scale and commercial-scale are defined by the annual production capacity in diesel gallon equivalents of a given project, and do not refer to a project’s global GHG impacts.  Community-scale projects are defined as projects producing 100,000 to 1 million DGE of new biofuel annually.  Commercial-scale projects are defined as projects producing above 1 million DGE of new biofuel annually.

Scoring criteria #4 Project Budget and Cost Effectiveness, and scoring criteria #6, Sustainability, both include criteria about lowering the carbon intensity of the proposed biofuel, and the global impacts on GHG emissions.  The carbon intensity of the biofuel should include avoided emissions from diversion of feedstocks, as applicable under LCFS approved pathways.  Total GHG emissions reduction is a function of the biofuel’s carbon intensity and the facility’s annual capacity.  Please see page 38-39 of the GFO for more details.

MATCH & ELIGIBLE PROJECT COSTS

29. Can you clarify the definition of “cash match”?  For example, if the applicant pays its staff to complete projects tasks, will those payments (and associated fringe and indirect costs) count as match?  Also, can you define “donated or loaned labor hours” and how they differ from the labor payments described above? Can the payment of employees to perform work on the project count as match?

Any expense for which cash is spent will qualify as cash match.  Cash contributions (which is the same as cash match) are defined as expenditures in which a financial transaction has occurred.  Therefore, if an applicant pays its staff to complete project tasks those payments and associated fringe benefits and indirect costs may be counted as cash match.  Applicant must be able to document expenses through payroll records and/or other expense records, following accepted accounting practices.  Your payroll records must clearly identify how many hours of employee time are being billed to the agreement, and the rates and hours must conform to the labor rates and hours in the Budget.  The Budget must be clear, as to the employee’s title or job classification, the wage rate, and the total hours that employee expected to work on the project.

“Donated or loaned labor” is work performed by an employee, as an unpaid volunteer, that is valued at the rate that employee would normally be paid.  No financial transaction is occurring; therefore, this cannot be counted as cash match.

Examples of match which are not cash contributions include, but are not limited to:  stock options and other investments; donated or loaned labor hours; and existing equipment, vehicles, facilities, land, inventory, other property, and fixed assets.  

30. Do the following count as cash contributions:

Labor paid for by a contractor? Yes if those payments are being made to staff listed on the Budget to work on project tasks and the labor is documented through payroll records.  

Labor performed by employees of the applicant? Yes if those payments are being made to staff listed on the Budget to work on project tasks and the labor expenses are documented through payroll records.

Discount off of retail prices for equipment purchased as part of the grant? No. Discounts on equipment, materials or other items are not an allowable cost at all as a reimbursable, cash match or non-cash match expenditure. Discounts are not an expenditure but rather reflect the Recipient’s ability to more cost-effectively administer and implement the proposed project.

31. If the project site is leased, would lease payments made during the term of the agreement apply towards cash match share?

Yes, if a financial transaction is occurring, then lease payments would qualify as cash match.  Lease payments should be documented like any other cash expense when an invoice is submitted. All transactions must be reasonable and allocable to the proposed project, must reflect at or below fair market rates, and be an “arms-length transaction.” An “arms-length transaction” is a transaction in which both parties in the deal are acting in their own self-interest and are not subject to any pressure or duress from the other party.

32. Is leasing land to grow dedicated biofuel feedstocks an eligible reimbursable expense? 

Land acquisition is not a reimbursable expense under this funding opportunity. However, leasing land may be an eligible reimbursable or match share expense if the lease costs are reasonable and allocable to the proposed project, reflect at or below fair market rates, and are entered into at an “arms-length transaction.” All reimbursable costs must be incurred during the approved term of the agreement (i.e., after full execution of the agreement and prior to the end term date). Match share expenditures are allowable from the date of the Notice of Proposed Awards through the end term date of the project. Lease costs outside these timeframes are not an allowable item of expense.

33. Would fueling stations co-located at the biofuel generating facilities be eligible for funding under this solicitation if they increase off-take capacity of the fuel?  Alternatively, would purchases of such fueling equipment be an eligible match share expenditure?

Costs associated with fueling infrastructure co-located with the proposed biofuel production facility are eligible as a match share expense under this solicitation. Applicants should demonstrate in their application how the fueling infrastructure enhances the economic viability of the proposed biofuel production facility and contributes to an improved cost effectiveness of the award.

34. Would the following be eligible project costs:

On-site storage? Yes.

Off-site storage? No.

Tube trailers? The Energy Commission will not reimburse for fueling infrastructure, but this may be counted towards match share. 

Compressed natural gas (CNG) trucks to transport RNG in tube trailers? CNG truck costs are not eligible under this solicitation as either a reimbursable or match share expense; however, the Alternative and Renewable Fuel and Vehicle Technology Program (ARFVTP) has separate funding opportunities for natural gas vehicles.  Please see the University of California, Irvine’s Natural Gas Vehicle Incentive Project (NGVIP) for more information:  https://ngvip.its.uci.edu/. 

Fueling stations? Costs associated with fueling infrastructure co-located with the proposed biofuel production facility are eligible as a match share expense under this solicitation. Fueling stations not co-located with the biofuel production facility are not eligible as either a reimbursable or match share expense. Applicants should demonstrate in their proposal how the fueling infrastructure enhances the economic viability of the proposed biofuel production facility and improves the cost effectiveness of the award.

Landfill gas (LFG) collection system improvements, including segregation of poor and good quality LFG extraction wells, addition of new deep LFG extraction wells, etc.?  Landfill gas collection system improvements are eligible items of reimbursable cost.  However, projects that increase incentives for additional municipal solid waste diversion to a landfill will be scored in accordance with the Sustainability scoring criterion (See Addendum 2).  It is the applicant’s responsibility to demonstrate that such investments are a necessary part of an integrated waste management plan that includes accelerating diversion of organic fractions away from landfills.

35. What is the specific definition of existing equipment?  Is it procured or installed?

Both. Existing equipment could be either procured or installed.  If payment was made prior to execution of the grant, and a financial transaction is not occurring within the term of the agreement, then the equipment is “existing” and may count as match as long as the value of the equipment is based on documented market values or book values and prorated for its use on the project during the approved project term. 

36. If equipment for the project is purchased via an equipment financing agreement, can payments to the equipment financing company made during the term of the agreement apply towards cash match share?

Yes, provided the payments are reasonable and allocable to the proposed project, reflect at or below fair market rates, and be an “arms-length transaction.” An “arms-length transaction” is a transaction in which both parties in the deal are acting in their own self-interest and are not subject to any pressure or duress from the other party.  Applicant must be able to document expenses through appropriate documentation.

37. If in-state produced ethanol is being utilized as a feedstock for a diesel substitute, can the cost of this feedstock be used as cash match, or should it be used as a non-cash match?

First and foremost, the ethanol must have been produced from an eligible feedstock in accordance with this solicitation. See Section II.B.5 of the GFO.  If the feedstock is eligible and purchased from a supplier in a cash financial transaction, then it would be eligible as a cash match expenditure.

38. Is LCFS pathway development for a biofuel eligible as either a match or reimbursable expenditure?

LCFS pathway development for a biofuel is eligible either as a reimbursable or as a match share expenditure. 

39. If a project has received an Energy Commission grant for a first phase of a project that is still underway, can the project receive funding for a second, expanded phase under this solicitation?  How far along does the project have to be in order to start a new project under this solicitation?

Yes, an applicant who has an existing project funded by an Energy Commission grant may apply for a grant under this GFO.  A project funded under this GFO may expand upon the existing project; however, the new project must be completely distinct and separate from the existing project.  Also note that the degree to which the existing project has fulfilled/is fulfilling the requirements of the agreement will be scored under the Project Readiness and Implementation scoring criterion for both the pre-application abstract and the full application. 

There is no requirement indicating how far along the project has to be in order to start a new project; however, the degree to which project team responsibilities from both projects might impair completion of either phase may reduce the Project Readiness score. For additional information, please see Section II.F, Applicant Performance.

40. Are other grant funds allowable as match funding?

Yes, grants from federal and other state agencies may count as match funding; however, funds from the Energy Commission (e.g., awards from other Energy Commission programs) cannot count towards the match share requirement. 

41. If a project has a general contractor under contract and construction begins prior to the execution of the Energy Commission grant, are eligible costs incurred after execution of the agreement reimbursable?

Yes.

42. Can payments made to a contractor prior to execution of an Energy Commission grant be counted as match?

Possibly. Expenditures incurred prior to execution of an Energy Commission grant may only be counted as match share if those expenditures are allowable in accordance with the agreement and were incurred after the Energy Commission notifies the applicant that its project has been recommended for an award through the release of a Notice of Proposed Award (NOPA). Any match share expenditures incurred prior to the full execution of the grant agreement is at the Recipient’s own risk.

43. Is there an maximum time, prior to execution of the agreement with the Energy Commission, that a subcontract can be executed to still be eligible for cash match under the grant agreement?  For example, if we are in the process of receiving bids and starting construction on portions of the eligible work prior to award by the Energy Commission, would this be eligible match

There is no maximum time prior to execution that a subcontract can be executed. However, allowable match share expenditures must be incurred after the Energy Commission notifies the applicant that its project has been recommended for an award through the release of a Notice of Proposed Award (NOPA). Any match share expenditures incurred prior to the full execution of the grant agreement is at the Recipient’s own risk.

44. Is Energy Commission funding under this solicitation able to support a two-stage development?  In other words, Stage 1 is catalyst and technology research and development, and Stage 2 is actually building a scaled commercial demonstration facility.

There are no restrictions precluding a two-stage development project. Proposed projects must meet all eligibility requirements of the solicitation including the minimum biofuel production requirements. Proposals will be evaluated based on the published scoring criteria including Project Readiness and Implementation and Project Budget and Cost Effectiveness. Applicants are advised to propose eligible projects that are competitive in accordance with the scoring criteria.

PRE-APPLICATION ABSTRACT

45. What if the project changes the scope (i.e. expands the production capacity) between pre-application abstract and full application submission?  Will this affect scoring negatively?

Expanding production capacity of a project between the Pre-Application Abstract and Full Application submission should not affect the application’s score negatively.  However, the project as a whole will be assessed based on the published scoring criteria, and the final scale should be what best suits the applicant’s capabilities.

Conversely, if the production capacity is reduced without strong justification, the score for an applicant’s full application may be affected negatively unless Pre-Application Abstract scoring feedback from the Energy Commission suggests downsizing.

Material changes to the project, made between the Pre-Application Abstract and Full Application submission, may be grounds for disqualification.

46. Are written funding commitments advisable for the Pre-Application Abstract?

No.  Applicants should not submit any actual written funding commitments as part of their Pre-Application Abstract.  However, applicants should reference written funding commitments in the abstract narrative.  Please note that the Pre-Application Abstract is limited to a maximum of 10 pages. (See Question # 52)  Additionally, information submitted in the Pre-Application Abstract cannot be kept confidential after the Notice of Proposed Awards is posted.

47. Does Attachment 10 need to be included with the Pre-Application Abstract?

No, Attachment 10 does not need to be included with the Pre-Application Abstract.  Attachment 10 can be used as a tool to help determine the annual fuel volume conversion and the annual greenhouse gas and carbon displacement of the project.

48. On page 15, Required Documents, the solicitation states “Funding Request and Cost Effectiveness:  No specific information beyond the scoring criterion bullets is requested.”  What are the “scoring criterion bullets”?

The scoring criteria bullets are contained within the Pre-Application Abstract Scoring Criteria table on pages 17 and 18 and are labeled as a., b., c., d., etc.

49. Can the Energy Commission clarify whether Budget Form Attachment 5 must be included with the Pre-Application Abstract?

No.  Applicants should not submit Budget Form Attachment 5 with the Pre-Application Abstract.  Please see Addendum 2.

50. Can the DGE calculation we use for synthetic diesel, green gasoline, and methane include a calculation for DGE for renewable methane that would be used for electrical power production vs. transportation fuel in the proposal?

No.  Only fuel for transportation may be calculated to determine the total eligible production capacity requirement of this solicitation.

51. Can a project that has yet to conduct the full project engineering use the Air Resources Board published technology pathways for developing the Pre-Application Abstract?  This would provide a bench mark for carbon emissions and the carbon intensity estimates for the biofuels projects, which could later be quantified and validated in more detail.

The biofuel’s estimated carbon intensity can refer to a published pathway as a benchmark, but the applicant should briefly discuss how the estimated pathway will differ from the proposed project’s fuel and by how much. Applicant’s score will depend on the degree to which the estimated difference is supported by credible analysis. 

52. Scoring Criterion #3, Funding Request and Cost Effectiveness, requests the “degree to which match funds are available and verifiable.”  In the case of third party funding, is a letter of commitment required, or do we need funders to show proof of currently available funds in an account?  What is the definition of “verifiable” and is it different in the abstract and final application phases?

In the Full Application phase, letters of commitment are required from each third-party match share contributor for verification of match funding. See section VI.G.11 for information about what is required in a letter of commitment.  Further proof of available funds that would increase the degree to which the dedicated match can be verified may be requested in technical review. 

In the Pre-Application Abstract phase, applicants should reference written funding commitments in the abstract narrative.  Contact information that allows preliminary verification is also encouraged to show verifiable evidence of match funding.  Applicants should not submit any actual letters of commitment as part of their Pre-Application Abstract though, as any documents submitted with a Pre-Application Abstract will count against the 10 page limit.

53. What’s the best way to provide “verifiable” information regarding feedstock acquisition and fuel off-take agreements?

In the Pre-Application Abstract phase, applicants should reference the degree to which feedstock acquisition and fuel off-take agreements have been secured in the Abstract narrative.  Contact information that allows preliminary verification is also encouraged to show verifiable evidence of feedstock acquisition or fuel off-take agreements.  Applicants should not submit actual letters of commitment or contracts as part of their Pre-Application Abstract, as any documents submitted with a Pre-Application Abstract will count against the 10 page limit. 

54. Should applicants submit a detailed budget for the Pre-Application Abstract round?

No.

55. Do more economically viable projects get a higher Abstract score in the funding request and cost effectiveness categories? 

No.  All criteria are scored independently.  The Funding Request and Cost Effectiveness scoring criteria measures how efficiently public funds are spent and is not related to the economic viability of the project. 

FULL APPLICATION

56. Are the identified feedstock suppliers and off-take contract holders kept confidential?  

No, identities of feedstock suppliers and off-take contract holders are not kept confidential.  As indicated in Section V.F. of the GFO only corporate financial records, technology trade secrets and price components of feedstock purchase agreements and off-take agreements may be submitted as confidential information as part of a clearly-labeled, separated volume of the application.  

Please Note: Under the terms and conditions of an executed agreement, award recipients will be required to submit invoices along with proper backup documentation.    All invoice and backup documentation will be publicly available records, including information such as the identity of a subcontractor or supplier and the prices of eligible expenses. Therefore, confidentiality of this information can no longer be maintained in the event of an executed agreement. 

57. What is being requested under Scoring Criterion #2, Business Plan, stating “the Applicant’s ownership composition and sources of funding for the project”?  Does this mean a list of shareholders? 

The purpose of this scoring criterion is to determine the major project partners and their financial contributions to the project.  If the prime applicant is a partnership, submission of a list of major partners is advisable.  The applicant should indicate the source of each project partner’s match, i.e. existing cash on hand, expected revenues, tipping fees, etc..  The applicant’s “ownership composition” is no longer being requested; please see Addendum 2.

58. Will all emissions calculations be based on the spreadsheet in Attachment 10?  There is no place in Attachment 10 to off-set emissions from biogas that has been historically and is currently being flared, but is proposed to be converted to diesel offset as part of the project.

Attachment 10 is a tool used to adjust the volume of biofuel produced to the reference of diesel gallon equivalents and to calculate the total GHG emission reductions your project will generate given your estimated carbon intensity. It is not a tool to calculate the carbon intensity of the proposed fuel.  Avoided emissions from diversion of feedstock that would otherwise emit GHGs are usually included in the carbon intensity calculation. The certification of your pathway by the Air Resources Board (ARB) would include the calculation of those avoided emissions that might reduce the pathway’s carbon intensity.  Please refer to the link regarding ARB’s calculation methodology on page 26 of the solicitation.

59. It looks like the URL to the “ARB calculation methodology guidance” mentioned in Section iii, Carbon Intensity, on page 26 does not exactly fit for all biomass waste streams and fuel production options proposed for this solicitation.  Are there better links or multiple links to guide for pathways beyond biodiesel and renewable diesel?

If an applicant is producing a fuel that does not fit the ARB’s Calculation Methodology Guidance, the applicant may find an already approved fuel pathway, close to what is being proposed, and modify it to fit their needs.  Approved pathways can be found here:  http://www.arb.ca.gov/fuels/lcfs/reportingtool/approved_physical_pathways_022916.xlsx.  The applicant can calculate a final carbon intensity using the guidance methodology provided by the ARB:  http://www.arb.ca.gov/fuels/lcfs/2a2b/internal/mixed-feedstock-bdrd-120112.pdf.  The applicant should provide assumptions and calculations to substantiate claimed carbon intensities.

60. How is it possible to demonstrate feedstock and off-take contracts without making sources of these business partners public?  Is any amount of redaction acceptable? 


As indicated in Section V.F. of the GFO only corporate financial records, technology trade secrets and price components of feedstock purchase agreements and off-take agreements may be submitted as confidential information as part of a clearly-labeled, separated volume of the application.  

Please Note: Under the terms and conditions of an executed agreement, award recipients will be required to submit invoices along with proper backup documentation.    All invoice and backup documentation will be publicly available records, including information such as the identity of a subcontractor or supplier and the prices of eligible expenses. Therefore, confidentiality of this information can no longer be maintained in the event of an executed agreement. 


61. Approximately how much weight is given to audited financial in the Financial Plan?  It may be difficult for some entities to provide a full audit in the submission period.  Are certified financial statements acceptable (partially or in full) for 2013 and 2014 in lieu of complete audited financials?

Yes.  Under scoring criteria #2, the financial plan requests applicants to provide balance sheet and cashflow statement as available and to include years 2013, 2014, and 2015 if applicable.  The goal is to establish credibility and viability of the applicant’s enterprise.  As part of scoring criteria #2, the applicant will be evaluated to the degree to which the project and the applicant demonstrate economic viability.  Please refer to scoring criteria #2 (Business Plan, Financial Plan, pages 23-24 and 37-38).

62. What are the timelines for planning, designing, construction, and commissioning for the facilities proposed?

All work should be scheduled for completion no later than March 31, 2021 and must include a minimum of six months of data collection and reporting.

Please note that the degree to which the date of full production capacity and operation at capacity can be expedited will be evaluated in the scoring criteria #3, Project Readiness and Implementation.

63. Can we use a default value in the ARB look-up tables or do we have to calculate a carbon intensity for the full application?

A default value is acceptable.  However, if the carbon intensity will differ, the biofuel’s estimated carbon intensity can refer to a published pathway as a benchmark, but the applicant should estimate and briefly discuss how the reference pathway will differ from the proposed project’s fuel and by how much. 

64. Can you clarify what is meant by the degree to which the proposed project minimizes Energy Commission funding per diesel gallon equivalent (DGE) of new annual production?

Under criteria #4, Project Budget and Cost Effectiveness, the Energy Commission is evaluating how efficiently public funds are spent by analyzing the ratio of Energy Commission funding (dollars requested) to diesel gallon equivalent of new annual production (volume capacity of fuel produced in the project).  For example, a project that requests $6 million dollars and produces 20 million DGE has a cost effectiveness score of $0.30 per DGE.

65. Can you provide an overview of the CEQA process?

Every project recommended for funding under GFO-15-606 must achieve California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) (Pub. Resources Code Section 21000 et. seq) compliance within 6 months of the release date of the NOPA.  Once CEQA compliance is achieved the grant award will be scheduled for presentation at an Energy Commission business meeting.  

The specific steps leading to CEQA compliance will differ depending on the project.  The best source of information is generally the designated lead agency for the project.  The lead agency is the public agency that has the greatest responsibility for preparing environmental documents under CEQA, and for carrying out, supervising, or approving a project.  This is usually the local government that has permitting discretion over the project.  It is recommended that applicants check with local governmental departments responsible for permitting as a first step and also consult with their legal counsel.

As to the submission of CEQA-related documents for GFO-15-606, applicants must submit a schedule for obtaining CEQA compliance as part of their Pre-Application Abstract.  As part of their Full Application, applicants must include information documenting progress towards achieving CEQA compliance or a schedule for obtaining compliance.  Applicants must also complete and submit the CEQA Worksheet (Attachment 7) and must provide documentation of communication with the local agency with jurisdiction over the proposed project.  Please refer to Sections IV.F.b; VI.G.4.c.iii; VI.G.12; and Attachment 7 of the GFO for more detailed information and instructions. 

MISCELLANEOUS

66. Can I request a copy of the workshop’s Power Point slides?

Yes, they are posted here: http://www.energy.ca.gov/contracts/GFO-15-606/.

67. Can I request a copy of the workshop recording?

The recording will be made available soon.  Once available, it will be posted here:
http://www.energy.ca.gov/contracts/GFO-15-606/.

68. Will there be an additional question and answer opportunity to request clarification on final submission, after the pre-application abstract submission?

The Energy Commission will open a second round of questions for applicants who pass the pre-application abstract scoring phase and are selected to move forward with full applications.  See Addendum 1 for revised Key Activities and Dates.

69. Is there a process by which we can search past and current proposal information or “forums”?

Information regarding past or current applications, as well as copies of past applications, is available upon request. The NOPA from past funding opportunities lists all applicants, passing or not, for the given funding opportunity.  

You may request past applications and a full list of passing biofuels projects by contacting:

Janna Franks
Email:  Janna.franks@energy.ca.gov 

NOPAs related to funding opportunities for biofuels production facilities and biofuels technologies from the past five years are posted  below.  The NOPA lists all applicants, passing or not, for the given funding opportunity.  

· PON-11-601: http://www.energy.ca.gov/contracts/PON-11-601_NOPA_R2.pdf 
· PON-13-601: http://www.energy.ca.gov/contracts/PON-13-601_NOPA.pdf 
· PON-13-609: http://www.energy.ca.gov/contracts/PON-13-609_Round_2_NOPA_Revised.pdf 
· PON-14-602: http://www.energy.ca.gov/contracts/PON-14-602_NOPA.pdf 
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